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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited (“the
Company”™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
("the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its
profits including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements’ sectizn of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the directors’ report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

The director's report is not made available to us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company'’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

r conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
ncern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
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auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books:

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure 2" to this report;

(@) Inour opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 42(B) to the financial
statements;

D) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.;

(iv) (@ The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the note 50(V) to the financial statements, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to orin
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the note 50(VI) to the financial statements, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or ctherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b)
above contain any material misstatement.

w) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

i) As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
for the Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number :
101049W/E300004

Membership Number: 058814
UDIN:23058814BGYZ0G6144
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2023
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Annexure 1referred to in paragraph [1] under Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements
of our report of even date

Re: Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited (the “Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

0) @ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, except for quantitative and description
details, which are pending updation in the records maintained by the company.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets reflected in the books.

(»)) The Company has a programme of physical verification of Property, Plant and
Equipment to cover all the items in phased manner over a period of three years,
which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
nature of its assets. Pursuant to such a programme, verification of Property, Plant
and Equipment has commenced during the year and is in progress as of reporting
date. Hence, we are unable to comment on the discrepancies, if any, that may arise
upon such verification.

© According to information and explanations given by the management and based on
the examination of the financial statements there is no immovable property held in
the name of the Company. In respect of immovable properties that have been taken
on lease and disclosed as property, plant, and equipment in the financial statement,
based on our examination of the lease agreements, the lease agreements are in the
name of the Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

@ The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

©) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

@n @ The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed upon such
verification. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate.

® As disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from
banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.
Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial
statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks
are in agreement with the audited / unaudited books of accounts of the Company.
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(i)

(iv)

W)

(vi)

(vii)

@

)

©

(d

)

®

(a)

During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of
loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees,
provided security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

There were no loans or advances in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) are
applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76
of the Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such
services as prescribed. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is reqular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed
by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.
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(b) According to records of the company, there are no dues of goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not
been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

(Rs. in million)

Name of the Nature Amount Period to Forum
statute of dues which the
amount relates
Maharashtra MVAT 0.85 | April 2017 to Deputy
Value Added Tax, June 2017 Commissioner of
2002 Sales Tax
(Appeals)
I Income-tax Act, Income 59.49 | FY 2017-18 CIT(A)
‘ 1961 Tax

(Refer Note 1)

Note 1: During the year, the Company has deposited Rs 5.28 million under protest
in connection with this dispute.

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

3(ix) @ The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon tc any lender.

()] The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

© The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

@ On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds

raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

D) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

) €)) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public
offer/ further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(o))} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under
audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. '

(@ No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.
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(xiD)

(xiiD)

(xiv)

xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(b)

©

@

(b)

(@

(b)

©

(d)

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has
been filed by the secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Act.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of
section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to
report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the
Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report,
for the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause (xvi)@) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(¢)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 48 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
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financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management pians and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

xx) @ In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act, in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 49 to the financial statements.

(b) All amounts that are unspent under section (5) the section 135 of Act, pursuant to
any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance of with
provisions of sub section (6) of section 135 of the said act. This Matter has been
disclosed in the note 49 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number :

101049W/E300004
&

per Nil shu Katriar
Partner

Membership Number: 058814
UDIN: 23058814BGYZ0G6144

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2023
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nykaa E-Retail
Private Limited (‘the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Renorting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
our audit of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Financial
Statements

A Company'’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to financial statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements
//"j;z;\includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
’ﬁ@“&%\ etail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)

N\
' \\;@ﬁ\)vide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
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financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies-or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number :

101049W/E300004
per Nil shu Katriar
Partne

Memberskip Number: 058814
UDIN: 23058814BGYZ0G6144

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2023
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Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Particulars Notes - As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,106.62 676.66
Right of use assets b 767.45 733.41
Capital work-in-progress 6 - 31.87
Intangible assets 7 183.10 91.11
Intangible assets under development 8 197.49 110.37
rinancial assets
Investments 9 0.00 -
Other financial assets 10 248.16 94.02
Deferred tax assets (net) 1 226.94 201.50
Non-cuirent tax assets 1 25.08 -
Other non current assets 12 137.79 59.91
Total non-current assets (A) 2,892.63 1,998.85
Current assets
Inventories 13 6,037.51 6,034.62
Financial assets _
Trade receivables 14 1,042.86 777.08
Cash and cash equivalents 5 166.52 2.39
Bank balarce other than cash and cash 16 66.95 47.80
equivalents
Other financial assets 17 837.46 555.72
Other current assets 18 1,7571.26 986.30
Total current assets (B) 9,908.56 8,403.91
Total assets (A+B) 12,801.19 10,402.76

[This space has been intentionally left blank]




Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited

(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 19 95.10 95.10
Other equity 20 4,002.67 2,045.47
Total equity (A) 4,097.77 2,140.57
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Financial liabilities

Lease Liabilities 21 662.12 555.57
Long-term provisions 22 48.46 44.40
Total non-current liabilities (B) 710.58 599.97
Current liabilities:
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 23 4,452.15 4,056.71

Lease liabiliies 24 420.23 211.13

Trade payables 25

-Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprise 366.60 398.02
and small enterprises
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other 1,096.32 2,059.15

than Micro enterprises and small enterprises o

Other financial liabilities 26 1,257.96 651.68
Short-term provisions 27 57.56 46.75
Contract liabilities 28 208.24 149.20
Current tax liabilities 11 - 20.08
Other current liabilities 29 133.78 69.50
Total current liabilities (C) 7,992.84 7,662.22
Total liabilities (B+C) 8,703.42 8,262.19
Total equity and liabilities (A+B+C) 12,801.19 10,402.76

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

@AI Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004

Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Ny il Private Limited

Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 08351358

ACS M.No.A13775

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2023

P Ganesh

Director and

Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 07202923

Company Secretary




Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Notes  For the yearended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income .
Revenue from operations 30 40,527.24 31,906.29
Other income 31 45.88 35.95
Total Income 40,573.12 31,942.24
_Expenses
Purchase of traded goods 32 25,504.38 22,810.33
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 33 (2.75) (2,442.52)
Employee benefits expense A 2,096.74 1,686.44
Finance costs 35 508.50 301.78
Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 709.57 428.61
Other expenses 37 9,189.43 8,035.16
38,005.87 30,819.80
Profit before tax 2,567.25 1,122.44
Tax expense: {
Current tax 1 680.17 367.01
Deferred tax 11 (25.13) (90.41)
Total tax expense ' ' - 655.04 276.60
Profit after tax 1,912.21 845.84

Other Comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements gain of defined benefit liability (1.22) 20.02
Income tax effect on above : 0.31 (5.04)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (0.91) 14.98
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,911.30 860.82
Earnings per share of face value Rs. 10/- each
Basic 38 201.07 88.94
Diluted 38 201.07 88.94

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP : For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
@\I Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004

per Nilahgshu Katriar 2 7
Partner %

ay ' P Ganesh
Chief Executive Officer  Director and
Chief Financial Officer

Membership No: 058814 DIN: 08351358 DIN: 07202923

Company Secretary
ACS M.No.A13775

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2023 Date: May 23, 2023




Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

A. Equity share capital:

_Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

No. of shares Amount
As at April 01, 2021 95,10,000 95.10
Issue during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 95,10,000 95.10
Issue during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 95,10,000 95.10

[This space has been intentionally left blank]




€26202.0 NId
19210 [elouBUlS JOIyD
pue Jopoauiq

yssues ¢

A

Aaqndy Aelueg
| | W

pajiwiT sjeAl

€202 'sZ Aepy :sreq@
lequiniy :8%e|d

€202 ‘ez Aen :@reQg
lequinjy :89e|d

SLLELY'ON'N SOV
Kieya1osg Auedwon

13940

85€15€80 ‘NId

AN

10 s10193.1Q JO pieogq Jo Jeyaq uo pue Jo-4

18850 ON diysiaquiaiy

aujled
Jerije)y nysbuepn Jad

T

¥0000€3/M6V0L0L ‘ON UohessiBay Wil |y
SIUBJUNO2OY palsiieyd

d71 sejelv0ssy g loqljeg "y 'S 104
sjep uans Jo Jodal Ino Jad sy

sjuawajelg [eloueuld ayj jo ed jesbajul ue ate sajou BulAuedwoooe ay

29'200° S9°CL LE'1) 19°0€S°e X444 €202 ‘L€ YdJeW je sy
06'G¥ 06'SY Jeak ayy Burinp uolippy
0g°LL6‘) (16°0) = 12°216°) - aWooU] aAIsUs|a4dwod [ejoL
(16°0) (16°0) ~ - - BLWOdU] BAISUBeIdWod B0
l2Zl6'l = - L2°CL6'L - Jeah ay) Joj J1joid 18N
Ly'sv0'e 95l Le'LL ob'8L9’L v1'96¢ 2202 ‘L€ Yoie je sy
.20l - - = .20l Jeak sy} Bulnp uonippy
28'098 86'vl - v8'sv8 - awlooul aAIsusyaldwod [ejo
86'vL 86°vL e = - awooul aAIsuayaidwod Jay0n
¥8'Gv8 - B ¥8°G18 “ Jeak 3y} ioj 1ijoid 18N
1671807} (ev'1) 18711 95°CLL 0v'¢62 1202 ‘10 11V 38 SY
aAlasay sBujuieg :
(120) awoaui [eyiden paulejay juaied wouy

Anba Jayjo jejo

aAlsuayaidwod

19430

uonNquIIu0d

snjdung 1 saAlasay lenden slenojjleq

fnba 13430 ‘g

(esimiayjo pajejs ssojun pue ejep aseys Jad jdeoxs (Up) uoljiw Sy Ul d4€ SUNOWE ny)
o o , pajiwi ajeAlld |lejay-3 eeyAN



Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash flows from Operating activities
Net profit before tax as per Statement of profit & loss 2,567.25 1,122.44
Adjustments to reconcile profit / (loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment ) 632.64 ) 352.15
Amortisation of intangible assets 76.93 76.46
Interest expense and other finance costs 508.50 301.78
Share based expense 45.91 7143
Provision for gratuity expense 20.98 21.39
Provision for leave compensated expense 13.81 (3.03)
) Expected credit loss 17.34 (18.34)
Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign exchange fluctuation (0.78) 0.29
Gain on cancellation of lease (3.82) -
Liabilities no longer required written back (1.54) -
Interest income (28.74) (10.70)
- Operating profit before working capital changes 3,848.48 1,913.87
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (283.11) 36.62
__(Increase) in inventories (2.89) (2,482.14)
Decrease/ (Increase) in other financial assets 54.17 (246.31)
2 4 (Increase) in other current assets (770.96) (662.82)
(Increase) in other non current assets (67.42) (35.00)
(Decrease) in trade payables (1,030.80) (142.23)
. (Decrease) in provisions (21.14) (11.52)
Increase in other current and financial liabilities 764.54 289.30
Cash flow from/(used in) operations 2,490.87 (1,340.23)
Payment of taxes (net) (725.33) (593.86)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 1,765.54 (1,934.09)
Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (987.23) (631.04)
Investment in fixed deposits (19.15) (20.87)
Investment in shares of fellow subsidiary (0.00)* -
Interest received 2.38 1.32
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (B) (1,004.00) (650.59)
Cash flows from Financing activities
Proceeds from / (Repayment) of current borrowings (net) 395.44 2,763.76
L4 Interest paid on borrowings (346.51) (208.34)
Rental income on sub lease (206.96) 5.03
Principal payment of lease liabilities (324.67) (194.22)
- Interest paid on lease liabilities (114.71) (61.75)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities (C) (597.41) 2,304.48
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 164.13 (280.20)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2.39 282.59
Cash and cash equivalents at the year end (Refer note 15) 166.52 2.39

*Numbers are below million under the rounding off conventons adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported.

Note:
1. Non cash transactions relating to investing and financing activities. (Refer Note: 17, 26, 39)

2. The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 Statement
of Cash flows.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants

| Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004
P Ganesh

Director and
Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 08351358 DIN: 07202923

gshu Katriar An

1ip No: 058814

A

anjay Dubey
Company Secretary
ACS M.No.A13775

| Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2023 Date: May 23, 2023




Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)
Notes to Financial Statements

1. Corporate Information

Nykaa E-retail Private Limited (the ‘Company’) is a private limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India.
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited. The registered office of the
Company is located at 104, Vasan Udyog Bhavan Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013.

The Company is engaged in the business of selling beauty, hygiene and wellness products through online channels
i.e. Company’s online platforms or websites and other online applications as well as through offline channels i.e.
stores, stalls etc.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorised for issue on May 23, 2023.

2A. Basis of preparation

i) Statement of compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (referred to
as “Ind AS”), as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act’) read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division Il of Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule lll, as
amended).

ii) Historical cost convention:
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

« certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and contingent consideration
is measured at fair value

« defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value
« share-based payments.

iii) New and amendéd standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are
effective 1 April 2022. These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

iv) New and amended standards issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and
are effective 1 April 2023.

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12 - Income taxes, Ind AS 8 - Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of financial statements.

The amendment in Ind AS 1 requires entities to disclose their material rather than their significant accounting
policies. The amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy information’ and explain how to identify
when accounting policy information is material. It is further clarified that immaterial accounting policy
information does not need to be disclosed. If it is disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting
information.

The amendment in Ind AS 8 clarifies how entities should distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is important, because changes in accounting estimates are
applied prospectively to future transactions and other future events, but changes in accounting policies are
generally applied retrospectively to past transactions and other past events as well as the current period.




Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)
Notes to Financial Statements

apply to transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations and will require the recognition of
additional deferred tax assets and iiabilities.

The amendment should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, entities should recognise deferred tax assets (to the extent that it is
probable that they can be utilised) and deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with:

* right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and
* decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, and the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the
cost of the related assets.

The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustments is recognised in retained earnings, or another
component of equity, as appropriate.

The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.
These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the company in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

2B. Summary of significant accounting policies:

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or

o Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

e  ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or due to be settled within twelve months after
the reporting period

. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified period of twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Property Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are
met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any
trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant & Equipment is included in asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate only when it is prgbable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during
which they are incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after
its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

— Cost incurred on Property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use is disclosed as Capital

A &2;{;;3“% Work-in-Progress and is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Advances paid towards

*\.r:\ the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified
\\ \ capital advances under other non-current assets. P‘



Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)
Notes to Financial Statements

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of Property, Plant & Equipment are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment:
Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method based on useful lives of the assets prescribed in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Property Plant & Equipment | Useful lives (in years)
Computers & Hardware 3

Furniture & Fixtures 10

Office Equipment 5

Leasehold improvements Period of primary lease

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each reporting
period and adjusted prospectively for any change in estimate, if appropriate. Changes in expected useful
lives are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

c) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Following, initial recognition, intangible assets with finite lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit
and loss in the period/year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful
life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Amortization of intangible assets:
Intangible assets are amortized on straight line basis as per the following useful lives:

Intangible asset Useful lives (in years)
Business application development (Internally | 3

generated)
Computer Softwares 3




Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)
Notes to Financial Statements

Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

- The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for
use or sale

- Itsintention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

- How the asset will generate future economic benefits

- The availability of resources to complete the asset

- The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when
development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected
future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. During the period of development, the asset is
tested for impairment annually.

d) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. If there is any indication of
impairment based on internal / external factors, an impairment loss is recognised, i.e. wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the assets net selling price and value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the
asset over its remaining useful life.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on most recent budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared for the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. A long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset's or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

e) Inventory
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

- Raw materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

- Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis. '

Traded goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inveniesies
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.




Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)
Notes to Financial Statements

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion necessary to make the sale.

An inventory provision is recognised for cases where the net realisable value is estimated to be lower than
the inventory carrying value. The net realisable value is estimated taking into account various factors,
including obsolescence of material due to design change, process change etc., unserviceable items i.e.
items which cannot be used due to deterioration in quality or due to shelf life or damaged in storage and
ageing of material i.e. slow moving/non-moving prevailing sales prices of inventory.

f) Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee:

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (e)
Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii. Lease liabilities:

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.




Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited

(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)
Notes to Financial Statements

iii. Short term leases and leases of low value assets:
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of property (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases where
the underlying asset is considered to be low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Sub-lease

At the commencement date, the Company recognises assets held under a sub-lease in its balance sheet
and present them as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The Company
uses the interest rate implicit in the lease to measure the net investment in the lease. In case if the interest
rate implicit in the sublease cannot be readily determined, the Company being an intermediate lessor uses
the discount rate used for the head lease (adjusted for any initial direct costs associated with the sublease)
to measure the net investment in the sublease.

At the commencement date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the net investment in
the lease comprise the following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term
that are not received at the commencement date:

- fixed payments less any lease incentives payable;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

- any residual value guarantees provided to the lessor by the lessee, a party related to the lessee or a
third party unrelated to the lessor that is financially capable of discharging the obligations under the
guarantee;

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

- payments of penalties, if any, for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
an option to terminate the lease

The Company recognises finance income over the lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant
periodic rate of return on net investment in the lease.

Net investment in the lease are subject to the derecognition and impairment requirements in Ind AS 109.
The Company regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values, if any, used in computing the
gross investment in the lease and adjusts the income allocation accordingly.

g) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement:

All Financial assets and liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

Financial Assets

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied
the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price as disclosed in note 2B(h) Revenue from contracts with customers.
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In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument
level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through”
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

el All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement:

i. Financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

+  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

«  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

+  Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

»  Financial assets at fair value though profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

i b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
L principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified, or impaired.

The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade and other receivables and loans to
employees.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)
o A “financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. For debt instruments, at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are
recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to profit or loss.

Financial Assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
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profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit and loss when the
right of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment. The
Company elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed equity investments under this category.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it measured at amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction cost directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized
in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined
based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of
loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised
less when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles
of Ind AS 115.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Derecognition
Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position)
when: '
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« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in statement of profit and loss
if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in statement of profit and loss on disposal of
that financial asset.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies simplified expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for trade receivables or any contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS 115 and
do not contain significant financing components.

The Company applies general approach for recognition of expected credit losses on all other financial
assets.

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

h) Revenue recognition:

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers ‘is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price

(net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods

sold, and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of discounts offered by the

Company as part of the contract. This variable consideration is estimated based on the expected value of

outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognised only to the extent that it is highly probable

that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition is

resolved.

The Company identifies the performance obligations in its contracts with customers and recognises -
revenue as and when the performance obligations are satisfied. The specific recogmtlon criteria described

\\below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
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Sale of products:

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products to customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for products. Revenue from
the sale of products is recognised when products are delivered to customer. Revenue is measured-based
on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, rebates, scheme
allowances, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified in the contracts with the
customers.

Contacts where the Company’s obligation is to arrange for the provision of goods and services by another
party, the Company recognizes revenue in the amount of the commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the provision of goods and services.

Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the government. Accruals for
discounts/incentives and returns are estimated (using the most likely method) based on accumulated
experience and underlying schemes and agreements with customers. Due to the short nature of credit
period given to customers, there is no financing component in the contract.

Rendering of services:
Income from services are recognised as and when the services are rendered.

Marketing Support Revenue:

- The Company recognizes marketing income i.e. visibility services provided by the Company to various
brands at retail outlets of the Company. Revenue from advertisement services is recognised when
advertisement is displayed.

- Advertising revenue is derived from displaying web and application based banner ads and sale of online
advertisements. Revenue from banner advertisement is recognised pro rata over the period of display of
advertisement as per contract.

- Revenue from sale of online advertisements is recognised based on output method and the Company
applies the practical expedient to recognize advertising revenue in the amount to which the Company has
a right to invoice upon rendering of services.

Reward points programme

The Company has a reward points programme which allows customers to accumulate points that can be
redeemed against future purchases of products at discounted prices. The reward points give rise to a
separate performance obligation as they provide a material right to the customer. A portion of the
transaction price is allocated to the reward points awarded to customers based on relative stand-alone
selling price and recognised as a contract liability until the points are redeemed. Revenue is recognised
upon redemption of points by the customer.

When estimating the stand-alone selling price of the reward points, the Company considers the likelihood
that the customer will redeem the points. The Company updates its estimates of the points that will be
redeemed on an annual basis and any adjustments to the contract liability balance are charged against
revenue.

ii. Contract balances:

- Contract assets .
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for products or services transferred to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferring products or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional.

- Trade receivables -
=y A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
’i"sﬁ&only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
"-t;i_‘:;spolicies of financial assets in section - Financial instruments — initial recognition and subgé
. !\"‘g;ri'geasurement.

s T -
1
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- Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier)."Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

i) Interest income:

Interest income is accrued on time basis, by reference to the principle outstanding and using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income is included under the head “Other income” in the
statement of profit and loss.

j) Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. WWhen discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

k) Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

a) Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at
the date of the transaction.

b) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated
in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a
foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was
determined.

c) Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of other monetary items or on reporting
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the
periodf/year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as
expenses in the statement of profit and loss in the period/year in which they arise.

1) Share Based payment

Certain employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments of FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited
(the Holding Company). These shares vest equally over a period of 3 — 4 years. The Company does not
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contribution from parent. The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date
when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in contribution by parent in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised
in employee benefits expense.

m) Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

All short term employee benefits such as salaries, incentives, medical benefits which are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related
services which entitles him to avail such benefits are recognized on an undiscounted basis and charged
to the statement of profit and loss.

Post-employment benefits

i. Defined Contribution Plans:
Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period/year when the contribution to the funds is
due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund. The Company
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders
the related service.

i Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity

The Company have an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees.
The plan provides for a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment
or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed
year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The gratuity benefits are
unfunded.

Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made
at the end of each financial period/year. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Company
recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and
- Net interest expense or income

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability, are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through ‘Other comprehensive income’ in the period in which they
occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

The Company provides for the encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The
ployees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits, for future encashment. The liability is
ided based on the number of days of recognized leave at each balance sheet date on the basis of an
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n)

o)

gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The
obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of
when the actual settlement.

Borrowing cost:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they are incurred. Borrowing cost includes
interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowing to the
extent they are regarded as adjustment to the interest cost.

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability — or

¢ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period. The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
advances, trade payables, bank overdraft and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The management selects appropriate valuation
techniques using discounted cash flow model when the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgement is required in establishing fair values. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant
assets and liabilities. The management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The
management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques
and inputs to use for each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
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r

s)

Income taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax -

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where
the Company operates.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of any unused tax losses. Deferred
'tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current tax and deferred tax are measured using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized outside
profit and loss is recognized outside profit and loss (either in OCI or in equity). The Company periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using
either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution
of the treatment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, and other short term highly liquid investments
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company’s cash management.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Earnings per share .
Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
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bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

t) Segment reporting
The Company drives synergy across fulfiment models, sales channels and product categories and
accordingly the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) reviews and allocates resources based on Omni
business and Omni channel strategy, which in the terms of Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’ constitutes
a single reporting segment.

u) Share capital
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity shares
are recognised as a deduction from equity.

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and
the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Such judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are evaluated based on historical experience and
various other factors, including estimation of the effects of uncertain future events, which are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amount
recognised in the financial statements and/or key sources of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

l. - ~—Judgements:

e Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — the Company as
lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. It considers all
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.

ll. Estimates and assumptions:
a. Estimation of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets represent a significant proportion of the asset base
of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of
an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and
residual values of assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed
periodically, including at each financial period/year end. The lives are based on historical experience with
similar assets. :

b." Fair Value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be

= measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
/‘g:’ %35, \ﬁchnlques including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken
fv‘%
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observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported falr value of financial
instruments.

c. Estimation of defined benefit obligation and compensated absences

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, compensated absences and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate
for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in
currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. Future salary
increases are based on expected future inflation rates. The mortality rate is based on publicly available
mortality tables for the country. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to
demographic changes.

d. Income taxes

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on
whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve
—- - -complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

e. Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. In assessing the probability the Company
considers whether the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, which will result in taxable amounts against which the unused tax

" losses or unused tax credits can be utilised before they expire. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The Company has
recognised deferred tax assets on the unused tax losses and other deductible temporary differences since
the management is of the view that it is probable the deferred tax assets will be recoverable using the
estimated future taxable income based on the approved business plans and budgets.

f. Provision

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably
estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement
to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions
and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

g. Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets depending on their classification are based on assumptions
about risk of default, expected cash loss rates, discounting rates applied to these forecasted future cash
flows, recent transactions and independent valuer's report. The Company uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

h. Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets:

The Company uses a simplified approach to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade
receivables. This is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed

default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. The assessment of
the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
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economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rates:

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.

The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the Company’s credit rating).

Other estimates:

The share-based compensation expense is determined based on the Company’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest.

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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Note 5
Right of Use Assets

Particulars Right of Use Total

Assets

Cost

As at April 01, 2021 686.39 686.39
Additions 679.33 679.33
Disposals (24.73) (24.73)
As at March 31, 2022 1,340.99 1,340.99
Additions 444.00 444.00
Disposals (210.33) (210.33)
As at March 31, 2023 1,574.66 1,574.66
Accumulated depreciation «

As at April 01, 2021 409.24 409.24
Depreciation charge for the year 211.25 211.25
Disposals (12.91) (12.91)
As at March 31, 2022 607.58 607.58
Depreciation charge for the year 353.37 353.37
Disposals (153.74) (153.74)
As at March 31, 2023 807.21 807.21
Net Book Value

As at March 31, 2023 767.45 767.45
As at March 31, 2022 733.41 733.41
Note 6

Capital Work-in-progress

Particulars Amount

As at April 1, 2021 14.98

Addition 28.91

Capitalisation (12.02)

As at March 31, 2022 31.87

Addition 678.07

Capitalisation (709.94)

As at March 31, 2023

Capital work in progress comprises of expenses incurred towards improvement to leasehold premises.

Capital Work-in-progress ageing schedule:

Period in progress

Lessthan1 1-2years

year

2-3 years More than 3

years

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

28.91 2.96

There are no overdue or cost overrun projects compared to its original plan and no projects which are temporarily
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Note 7
Intangible assets
: Business
. application Computer
Particulars Catalogue dovolopimest Softasiiess Total
cost
Cost
As at April 01, 2021 57.23 329.17 25.22 411.62
Additions - 39.21 5.30 44.51
Disposals (57.23) - - (57.23)
As at March 31, 2022 - 368.38 30.52 398.90
Additions - 175.39 8.61 184.00
Disposals - (15.08) - (15.08)
As at March 31, 2023 - 528.69 39.13 567.82
Accumulated amortisation
As at April 01, 2021 57.23 219.20 12.13 288.56
Amortisation charge for the year - 70.29 6.17 76.46
Disposals (57.23) - - (57.23)
As at March 31, 2022 - 289.49 18.30 307.79
Amortisation charge for the year - 71.03 9.00 80.03
Disposals - (3.10) - (3.10)
As at March 31, 2023 - 357.42 27.30 384.72
Net Book Value -
At March 31, 2023 - 171.27 11.83 183.10
At March 31, 2022 - 78.89 12.22 91.11
Note 8
Intangible assets under development
Particulars Amount
As at April 01, 2021 3.88
Addition 145.70
Capitalisation (39.21)
As at March 31, 2022 110.37
Addition 267.26
Reversal (4.75)
Capitalisation (175.39)
As at March 31, 2023 197.49

Intangible assets under development includes cost incurred towards development of business application
development.

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule:

Period in progress Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years

As at March 31, 2023 197.49 - - -

As at March 31, 2022 110.37 - - -

There are no overdue or cost overrun projects compared to its original plan and no projects which are temporarily
suspended, on the above mentioned reporting dates.
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Note 9
Investment _ _
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Investments in fellow subsidiary (Unquoted, fully paid up)

(A) Investments in Equity Instruments of fellow subsidiary (at cost)
Nykaa Foundation 0.00* -
1 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each

(March 31, 2022: Rs. NIL)

Total 0.00

*Numbers are below million under the rounding off conventons adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported.

Note 10

Other financial assets (non-current) (measured at amortised cost)

Particulars At e ol
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Security deposits (Unsecured, considered good) 100.33 86.92

Sublease net investments 147.83 710

Total 248.16 94.02

Note 11

Income tax

The major components of income tax expense / (credit) are:

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current tax:
In respect of current year 680.17 364.34
In respect of earlier year - 2.67
680.17 367.01
Deferred tax:
In respect of current year (25.13) (88.77)
In respect of unrecognised business loss of earlier years - (1.64)
(25.13) (90.41)
Income tax expense/(income) reported in the statement of profit or loss 655.04 276.60
OCl section - Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
Tax expenses / (income) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 0.31 (5.04)
Income tax expense charged / (credited) to OCI 0.31 (5.04)

P Mithars s, e
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The reconciliation between the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the loss

before tax and income tax expense / (credit) is summarised below:

Particulars

ror the year ended For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Profit before tax 2,567.25 1,122.44
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 646.18 282.52
Tax effect of:

Commission on financial guarantee 1.67 9.22
Interest on late payment of taxes - (1.91)
Tax expense / (credit) pertaining to earlier years - 1.03
Others 7.19 (14.26)
Total Tax 655.04 276.60
Current tax expense 680.17 367.01
Deferred tax expense (25.13) (90.41)
Tax expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 655.04 276.60
Effective tax rate 25.52% 24.64%

Gross movement in the current income tax assets/(liabilities) for the years ended March 31, 2023 and

March 31, 2022:

Particulars Asdt fodl
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net income tax asset at the beginning (20.08) (246.93)
Income tax paid 725.33 593.86
Current income tax expense (680.17) (367.01)
Net income tax asset at the end 25.08 (20.08)
Income tax assets/ (liabilities) as per balance sheet 25.08 (20.08)
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
Particulars b As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expenses allowable on payment basis 48.52 80.42
Provision for expected credit loss 15.45 11.08
Lease related assets and liabilities (net) 20.63 5.49
Depreciation and amortision (excluding ROU) 38.84 25.17
Others 103.50 78.74
Deferred tax assets (A) 226.94 201.50
Deferred tax liabilities (B) - -
Deferred tax assets (net) (C=A-B) 226.94 201.50
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net):
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
‘Opening balance 201.50 116.13
Taxincome recognised in statement of profit and loss for the year 2513 90.41
Tax (expense)/income recognised in OCI for the year 0.31 (5.04)
Closing balance 226.94 201.50
RNAY
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Note 12

Other non current assets

Particulars ) As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Advance for capital goods 35.37 24.91

Balance with statutory / government authorities 102.42 35.00

Total 131.79 59.91

Note 13

Inventories (valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Stock-in-frade 5,925.46 5,922.71

Packing material 112.05 111.91

Total 6,037.51 6,034.62

During the year ended March 31, 2023 Rs 299.05 Mn (March 31, 2022 Rs 212.87 Mn) is recognised as provision
taking into account various factors, including obsolescence of material, unserviceable items and ageing of material.

Note 14

Trade receivables

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Trade receivables - Unsecured, considered good 1,042.86 777.08

Trade receivables - Credit Impaired : 61.37 44.03

Less: Alowances for expected credit loss (Refer note 44) (61.37) (44.03)

Total 1,042.86 717.08

For details of trade receivable with related party refer note 41 related party disclosures.

No Trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the group either severally or jointly with any other
person.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on payment terms of 0-90 days.

Trade receivables Ageing Schedule:

As at March 31, 2023

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
. Current but
Particulars Lessthan® 6 months - 1 More than 3
not due 1-2years  2-3years
months year years
Undisputed Trade Receivebles - Unsecured, considered good 6519 3091 000 - - - 10428
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired 130 0.78 AN U uh 18U 61.37
Totd 653.5 39169 AN M un 1A 1104.23

*Numbers are below milion under the rounding off convenions adopted by the company and accordingly not reported.
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As at March 31, 2022

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
, Current but
Particulars Lessthan6 6 months- 1 More than 3
not due 2years  2-3years
months year years
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Unsecured, consideredgood 57708 20000 - - 1708
Unisputed Trade Receivables - Credt Impaired 116 281 49 42 08 4403
Total .Y 004 49 14.5 2089 AN
Note 15
Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with banks in current accounts 166.52 0.83
Cash on hand - 1.5
Total 166.52 2.39
Note 16
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at Asat
' : March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Margin money deposits with bank (held as lien by bank against quarantees) 66.95 47.80
Total 66.95 47.80
Note 17
Other financial assets (current) (measured at amortised cost)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sublease net investments 85.12 4.39
Security deposits (Unsecured, considered good) 29.62 4.92
Unbilled receivable 461.29 344.68
Receivable from payment gateway / cash collection vendors 260.46 201.05
Interest accrued on deposit but not due 0.97 0.68
Total 837.46 555.72
Movement in interest accrued on deposit but not due
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 0.68 0.49
Interest accrued during the year 2.67 1.51
Receipt of interest during the year (2.38) (1.32)
Closing Balance 0.97 0.68
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Note 18

Other current assets

Particulars ) As at As at
| March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Advance to suppliers (Unsecured, considered good) 133.56 115.98

Advance against expenses (Unsecured, considered good) 45.56 38.9%

Prepaid expenses 52.08 73.91

Balance with statutory / government authorifies 1,526.06 757.45

Total 1,751.26 986.30

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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Note 19
Equity Share Capital
i Equity Shares

Particulars Numbers Amount
_i) Authorised Share Capital

As at April 01, 2021 1,20,00,000 120.00
Increase / (decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 1,20,00,000 120.00
Increase / (decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 1,20,00,000 120.00

i) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will
be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. Each equity shareholder
is entitled to dividends as and when the Company declares and pays dividend after obtaining shareholders’

approval.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distribution to equity

share-holders was Nil (March 31, 2022: Rs Nil).

ii) Issued share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Particulars Equity shares

Numbers Amount
As at April 01, 2021 95,10,000 95.10
Changes during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 95,10,000 95.10
Changes during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 95,10,000 95.10

i) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates along with nominee shareholder:

Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/ associates

are as below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited (Holding Company) 95.10 95.10

9,510,000 (March 31, 2022: 9,510,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

% holding  No. of shares % holding

FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited

100.00% 96,10,000 100.00%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received
from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial

ownerships of shares.

v) Neither bonus shares issued nor shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years " -

immediately preceding the reporting date.
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Note 20

Other equity

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(i) Retained earnings

Opening balance 1,618.40 772.56

Add : Profit during the year 1,912.21 845.84

Closing balance (A) 3,530.61 1,618.40

(ii) Other comprehensive income

Opening balance 13.56 (1.42)

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year (0.91) 14.98

Closing balance (B) 12.65 13.56

(iii) Capital reserve

Opening balance 17.37 17.37

Add: Addition during the year - -

Closing balance (C) 17.37 17.37

(iv) Capital Contribution from Parent

Opening balance 396.14 293.40

Add: Addition during the year 45.90 102.74 .

Closing balance (D) 442.04 396.14

Total (A+B+C+D) 4,002.67 2,045.47

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Retained earnings: Retained Earnings are the profits / (losses) that the Company has earned till date, less any'
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

(ii) Other Comprehensive Income: This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on remeasurement of
defined employee benefit plan.

(iii)y Capital Reserve: On March 31, 2017, the company had entered into a business transfer agreement (BTA) with
its Holding Company “FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited” to acquire the E-Commerce business on slump sale
basis. The difference between the value of net assets transferred and the aggregate purchase consideration was
accounted as capital reserve. '

(iv) Contribution from parent company consists of:

Share Based Payment: FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited, the Holding company has extended its stock
options program to selected employees of subsidiaries including the Company. The fair-value of equity-settled
transactions; calculated at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model and recognized
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.

Guarantee from Holding Company: fair value of guarantee given by Holding Company for loans taken from
bank. '

*$.8
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Note 21
Lease liabilities (Non Current)
Particul As at As at
articuiars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Payable for lease liabilities (Refer note 39) 662.12 599.57
Total 662.12 555.57
Note 22
Long-term provisions
Particulars Ast Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 40) 48.46 44.40
Total 48.46 44.40
Note 23
Borrowings (Current)
Particulars heat bt
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Secured - Carried at amortised cost .
Working capital loan from Banks 2,747.06 2,134.84
Unsecured
Loan from holding Company 1,705.09 1,921.87
Total 4,452.15 4,056.71

()  Working Capital/Cash Credit Facilities from Bank is secured by hypothecation of book debts, current assets and
movable Property, plant and equipment both present and future.

(i)  Loan is repayable on demand. Interest payable on working capital loan is MCLR/REPO/TBIll adjusted with the
risk spread mutually agreed between the parties.

(iify  Maximum amount of loan outstanding from holding Company during the year was Rs 2769.43 Mn (March 31,
2022 - Rs 1,928.57 Mn) and for working capital loan from banks was Rs. 3,383.12 Mn (March 31, 2022 —
Rs. 1,928.57 Mn).

(iv) Bank loan contain certain financial covenants & the Company has satisfied all covenants as per the terms of
bank loan.

(v) As at March 31, 2023, the Company had undrawn committed funded and non-funded borrowing facilities of
Rs 1,000.78 Mn (March 31, 2022: Rs 208.40 Mn).

(vi) Quarterly statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the
audited/unaudited books of accounts.
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Reconciliation of stock statements submitted with bank for FY 2021-22:

Quarter  Name of Bank'” Particulars ~ Amount as per  Amount as Amount of Reason for material discrepancies
books of reported in-  difference
account quarterly
return /
statement
Inventory 4,170.83 4,289.47 (118.64) Amount as per books includes fotal inventory

balance as per trial balance. The difference is
primarily on account of closing GST input credit
included in amount reported in quarterly return. Also
amount reported in the quarterly return include
inventory greater than 9 months.

Trade receivable 1,626.69 1,290.56 336.13 Difference is due to unbilled receivable and

and others receivable from COD / Prepaid which are not
considered in the quarterly return.

3,973.65 4,232.93 (259.28) The difference is primarily on account of GST input
credit included and change in inventory / provision
for slow moving and obsolescence inventory balance
in the quarterly submission to the bank.

3,973.65 4,309.91 (336.26)

Kotak Bank, ICICI
Bank, RBL Bank,
HDFC Bank, IDFC
Bank, Axis Bank

Jun-21

Kotak Bank, IDFC
Bank, ICICI Bank,
Axis Bank

Inventory

HDFC Bank

Kotak Bank, IDFC 1,213.52 896.29 317.23 The difference is primarily on account of advance to

Bank, ICICI Bank suppliers which has not been considered by the
Company as part of quarterly submission to the bank
and on account of reclassification entries recorded
after the submission of the statement to the banks as
per due date and before the finalisation of results.

Sep—21(2'

HDFC Bank 1,213.52 1,087.44 126.09 The difference is primarily on account of advance to
suppliers and trade receivables greater than 90 days
Trade receivables, which has not been considered by the Company as
Advance to part of quarterly submission to the bank and on
Suppliers, Other account of reclassification entries recorded after the
Receivables submission of the statement to the banks as per due
date and before the finalisation of results.

Axis Bank 1,213.52 805.25 408.28 The difference is primarily on account of advance to
suppliers which has not been considered by the
Company as part of quarterly submission to the bank
and on account of reclassification entries recorded
after the submission of the statement to the banks as
per due date and before the finalisation of resuits.
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Quarter Name of Bank'” Particulars Amount as per  Amount as Amount of Reason for material discrepancies
books of reported in difference
account quarterly
return-/
statement

Kotak Bank, IDFC  Inventory 4,704.58 5,169.90 (465.32) The difference is primarily on account of GST input

Bank, ICICI Bank, credit included and change in inventory / provision

Axis Bank, HDFC for slow moving and obsolescence inventory balance

Bank in the quarterly submission to the bank.

Kotak Bank, IDFC  Trade receivables, 1,309.76 1,255.04 54.72 The difference is primarily on account of

Bank, ICICI Bank, Advance to . reclassification entries recorded after the submission

HDFC Bank Suppliers, Other of the statement to the banks as per due date and

Dec-21@ Receivables before the finalisation of results.

Axis Bank 1,309.76 1,187.44 122.32 The difference is primarily on account of
reclassification entries recorded after the submission
of the statement to the banks as per due date and
before the finalisation of results.

Kotak Bank, IDFC ~ Advances to 186.43 201.43 (15.00) The difference is primarily on account of

Bank, ICICI Bank,  suppliers reclassification entries recorded after the submission

Axis Bank, HDFC of the statement to the banks as per due date and

Bank before the finalisation of results.

5,808.15 6,657.90 (849.75) The difference is primarily on account of GST input

Axis Bank, IDFC credit included and change in inventory / provision

Bank, ICICI Bank, for slow moving and obsolescence inventory balance

Kotak Bank Inventory in the quarterly submission to the bank.

5,808.15 6,652.22 (844.07) The difference is primarily on account of GST input
credit included and change in inventory / provision
@ for slow moving and obsolescence inventory balance
Mar-22* ibFG Bank in the quarterly submission to the bank.
Axis Bank, IDFC Trade receivables, 1,042.29 1,051.37 (9.08) The difference is primarily on account of
Bank Advance to reclassification entries recorded after the submission
Suppliers, Other of the statement to the banks as per due date and
HDFC Bank Receivables 1,058.17 (15.88) before the finalisation of results.

1,042.29

() Kotak Bank, ICICI Bank, RBL Bank, HDFC Bank, IDFC Bank, Axis Bank referred in the above table are for Kotak
Mahindra Bank Limited, ICICI Bank Limited, The Ratnakar Bank Limited, HDFC Bank Limited, IDFC First Bank and
Axis Bank Limited.
@ For quarter ended September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2021, and March 31, 2022 the Company had

submitted revised statements with the banks post balance sheet date, which had been acknowledged by the bank.

Note 24

Lease liabilities (Current)

Particulars As at s

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Payable for lease liabilities (Refer note 39) 420.23 21113

Total 420.23 21113

Note 25

Trade payables

Particular Asat As at
S March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 366.60 398.02

Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises and 1,096.32 2,059.15

small enterprises

Total 1,462.92 2,457.17

Refer note 41 for payables to related parties.
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Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The identification of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises is based on the Management’s knowledge of their status.
Disclosure is based on the information available with the-Company regarding the status of the suppliers as defined
under ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’.

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 366.60 398.02
supplier as at the end of each accounting year.

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the - -
MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making - -
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
_year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 6.91 1.50
accounting year

€) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the - -
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are

actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a

deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2023

_ CumraatbiE gt Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3
due 1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and : 267 363.93 - - - - 366.60
small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 358.59 691.87 18.03 6.16 21.67 1,096.32
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total 361.26 1,055.80 18.03 6.16 21.67  1,462.92
As at March 31, 2022
' Current but not Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3
due 1-2 years 2-3 years
year years

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 230.61 166.19 0.41 0.81 0.00 398.02
small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 1,557.43 475.38 22.35 3.07 092  2059.15
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total 1,788.04 641.57 22.76 3.88 0.92 245117
Note 26
Other financial liabilities (Current)
Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Employee related liabilifies* 22510 148.74
Accrued expenses 971.06 406.81
Creditors for capital goods 48.93 92.30
Mark-to-market liability ; 0.61 -
Interest accrued but not due L 12.26 L 3.83
Total 1,257.96 651.68
*Fo its. of salary payable to KMP’s refer note 41 on related party disclosures.
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Movement in Interest accrued but not due and finance charge:

Particulars As at A et
) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 3.83 494
Interest cost on borrowings and finance charge accrued during the year 354.93 201.88
Payment of interest and finance charge during the year (346.50) (202.99)
Closing balance 12.26 3.83
Note 27
Short-term provisions
Particulars Al et
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 40) 14.54 7.96
Provision for Compensated absences 43.02 38.79
Total 57.56 46.75
Note 28
Contract liabilities
Particulars Asid As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred revenue (Provision for reward points) 86.72 76.90
Advance from customers 121.52 72.30
Total 208.24 149.20
Movement in provision for reward points
Particulars host AR
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 76.90 56.95
Provision made during the year 408.57 321.52
Provision utilised during the year (398.75) (301.57)
Closing balance 86.72 76.90
Note 29
Other current liabilities
Particulars hedt Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Statutory dues 133.78 69.50
Total 133.78 69.50
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Note 30
Revenue from operations

For the year ended  For the year ended

i March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Sale of products ) 35,407.62 28,048.04
B. Sale of services
Marketing support revenue 4,832.03 3,691.89
Income from marketplace services 287.59 160.77
C. Other Operating Revenue
Gift card expiration - 5.59
Total 40,527.24 31,906.29
Geography For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Within India 40,527.24 31,906.29
Outside India - -
40,527.24 31,906.29

(A) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with Customers
The Company derives its major revenue from sale of products and sale of products by selected platforms (income

for marketplace services), which is a single line of business. The company also derives revenue by providing
advertisement services to its suppliers which is related to sale of product business.

(B) Contract Balances

Particulars For the yearended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Receivables 1,042.86 777.08
Contract Assets ) - ' -
Contract Liabilities ) 208.24 149.20
Contract Price 40,586.28 31,893.73

Revenue recognized in the period from:
Revenue recognized in the current year from contract liability: -

Advance from Customer 72.30 104.81
- Reward Point 76.90 56.95
Revenue deferred in the current year towards unsatisfied performance obligation:
Advance from Customer (121.52) (72.30)
Reward Point (86.72) (76.90)
Revenue from operations 40,527.24 31,906.29
Note 31
Other income
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest Income on:
Net investment (sublease) 14.50 1.58
Security Deposit 11.57 7.61
Fixed deposit 2.67 1.51
Foreign exchange gain (net) 11.78 3.20
Gain on cancellation of lease : 3.82 -
Liabilities no longer required written back ) 1.54 -
Miscellaneous income - 22.05
Total 45.88 35.95
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Note 32
Purchase of traded goods

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Purchases of fraded goods 25,504.38 22,810.33

Total 25,504.38 22,810.33

Note 33

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Stock-in-trade

Opening balance 5,922.71 3,480.19
Closing balance 5,925.46 5,922.71
Total (2.75) (2,442.52)
Note 34
Employee benefits expense
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 1,947.74 1,531.20
Contribution to provident fund (Refer note 52) 32.45 27.10
Gratuity expenses (Refer note 40) 20.98 21.39
Compensated expenses 13.81 (3.03)
Share based expenses (Refer note 47) 45.91 71.43
Staff welfare expenses 35.85 38.35
Total 2,096.74 1,686.44
Note 35
Finance costs
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest expenses on borrowings 201.66 145.81
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 114.71 61.75
Interest expenses on inter company loan 139.03 45.44
Other interest cost 6.91 1.50
Commission on financial guarantee 31.94 36.65
Other finance charge 14.25 10.63
Total 508.50 301.78
Note 36
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 4) 279.27 140.90
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer note 5) 353.37 211.25
Amortisation of Intangible assets (Refer note 7) 76.93 76.46
Total 709.57 428.61

AR

¥ \%‘,\‘,‘\
(14 \%
(‘3: { e jEm g

2
i w2 gl
= £ 4§ i~
\M/ﬁ
& S

2 ©




Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 37
Other expenses
Particulars ) For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Marketing & Advertisement Expense 3,363.81 2,924.86
Consumption of Packing Materials 740.00 760.98
Legal and Professional Fees 100.89 52.37
Web & Technology Expenses 727.93 485.74
Brand Usages Fees 394.49 313.15
Qutsource warehouse manpower Expenses 735.55 695.31
Payment Gateway Charges 182.38 166.48
Freight Expenses 2,222 .81 2,198.31
Selling Expenses 159.22 105.07
Recruitment Expenses 41.56 39.80
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 66.92 31.97
Expected credit loss/credit impaired 17.34 (18.34)
Printing & Stationery 42.69 24.07
Communication Expenses 46.38 26.88
Rates & Taxes (Refer note 53) 62.70 60.20
Insurance Expenses 26.95 20.91
Rent and Maintenance Expenses 33.22 . 8.19
Director Sitting Fees 3.05 0.23
Repairs & Maintenance - Others 11.55 9.86
Security Expenses 102.44 62.48
Electricity Charges 63.35 29.82
Warehouse operation management Expenses 6.07 4.90
Bank Charges : 3.82 : 4.85
Auditors remuneration : .
- Audit fees 4.68 4.30
- Other Matters -
Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities 17.16 9.37
(Refer note 49)
Miscelleneous Expenses 12.47 13.40
Total 9,189.43 8,035.16
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Note 38
Basic & diluted earnings per share
Particulars ’ For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Nominal value of per equity share 10/- 10/
Profit after tax (A) 1,912.21 845.84
Profit affributable to equity shareholders 1,912.21 845.84
Total number of shares outstanding during the year 95,10,000 95,10,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B) 95,10,000 95,10,000
Basic earnings per share (A/B) 201.07 88.94
Dilutive effect on weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (C) - -
Weighted average number of diluted equity shares (D=B+C) 95,10,000 95,10,000
Diluted earnings per share (A/D) 201.07 88.94
Note 39
Leases

The Company as lessee

The Company has lease contracts for premises obtained for offices, warehouse etc. Leases of premises generally
have lease terms between 1.5 to 9 years.

The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are
negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s
business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension and
termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised. '

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under lease liabilities) and the movements during
the year:

. Asat Asat
Fafigtars March31,2023  March3t, 2022
Opening balance 766.70 314.49
Addition 700.73 659.39
Accretion of interest 114.71 61.75
Deletion due to closure (60.41) (12.96)
Payments (439.38) (255.97)
Closing balance 1,082.35 766.70
Non-current 662.12 555.57
Current 420.23 21113
Total 1,082.35 : 766.70

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in note 45.

The following are the amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss:

For the yearended  For the year ended

Particulars March31,2023  March 31, 2022

Depreciation expenses of right of use assets 353.37 211.25
Interest expenses on lease liabilifies 114.71 61.75
Short term lease payments* 3.2 819
Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss : 501.30 281.19

* Includes CAM Charges
The Company earned total rental income from sublease of Rs 57.26 Mn (March 31, 2022: Rs. 4.85 Mn)

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities as at March 31,2023 ranges between 9.4% to 11.5% (March 3
9.4% to 11.5%)
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Note 40

1) Defined Contribution Plan

During the year, the Company has made contribution/provision to provident fund stated under defined
contribution plan amounting to Rs 32.45 Mn (FY 2021-22 Rs 27.10 Mn) and the same has been recognized as

an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

) Defined Benefit Plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The gratuity benefits payable to the
employees are based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. The Company
has provided for gratuity based on actuarial valuation done as per projected unit credit method.

The Company has provided for gratuity based on actuarial valuation done as per projected unit credit method.

A. The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans, and the amounts recognised in
the Company's financial statements as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

i. Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Amount to be recognised in balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation 63.00 52.36
Less: Fair value of plan assets - -
Funded status — deficit / (surplus) 63.00 52.36
Net liability recognised in balance sheet 63.00 52.36
Non current 14.54 44.40
Current 48.46 7.96
Net liability recognised in balance sheet 63.00 52.36
ii. Changes-in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation

Opening defined benefit obligation 52.36 52.50
Current senvice cost 18.10 19.58
Past service cost (1.23)
Interest cost 2.88 3.04
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss in obligation due to changes in demographic / financial (7.73) (3.92)
assumptions

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss in obligation due to changes in experience adjustments 8.95 (16.10)
Benefit paid (11.56) (1.51)
Closing defined benefit obligations 63.00 52.36
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iii. Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefit expenses and other
comprehensive income:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service cost 18.10 19.58
Past service cost - (1.23)
Interest expenses 2.88 3.04
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 20.98 21.39
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss in obligation due to changes in financial assumptions (2.09) 1.41
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss in obligation due to changes in demographic assumptions (5.64) (5.33)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss in obligation due to changes in experience adjustments 8.95 (16.10)
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 1.22 (20.02)

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown
below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Mortality Table IALM (2012-14) |ALM (2012-14)
Discount rate: 7.20% 9.95%
Future salary increases* 8% until year 1, then 6.5% 8% until year 1 then 6.5%
Withdrawal rates 28% - 39% across levels  20.64% - 30.54% across
' ' levels

IALM - Indian Assured Lives Mortality (Uimate) IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India Bonds as at the Balance Sheet
date for the estimated term of the obligations.

*The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

C. The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars For the year ended As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 14.54 7.96
Between 2 and 5 years ‘ 44.80 32.68
Between 6 and 9 years 17.29 17.67
10 & Abowe following years 1.12 13.98
Total expected payments _ 84.35 72.29

The weighted aVerage duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of réporting period is 3.6 years
(March 31, 2022: 4.79 years).
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D. Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumption as of end of reporting period is shown below:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Discount rate (-1+ 1%)

Decrease by 100 basis points 2.34 2.62
Increase by 100 basis points (2.20) (2.41)
Future salary increase (-/+ 1%)

Decrease by 100 basis points (2.13) (2.24)
Increase by 100 basis points 2.22 2.37

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period
and assuming there are no other changes in the market conditions. There have been no changes from the previous

periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

a) Interest risk - A decrease in the discount rate will increase the plan liability.

b) Longevity risk — The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life

expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

c) Salary risk — The present value of the defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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Note 41

Related party transactions

A Names of the related parties

Relationship Name of entity

Holding Company FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited
Fellow Subsidiary Company* FSN Brands Markeing Private Limited

Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited

Nykaa Fashion Private Limited

FSN Distribution Private Limited

FSN International Private Limited

Nudge Welness Private Limited w.e.f. June 30,202

Nykaa Foundafion w.e.f.June 8,2022

Dot & Key Wellness Private Limited w.e.f. September 28, 2021

Directors and Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Ms. Falguni Nayar - Execufive Director

M. Arvind Agarwal # - Director and Chief Financial Officer il November 25,2022

Ms. Adwaita Nayar -- Director il May 17, 2021

Mr. Anchit Nayar -- Director and Chief Executive Officer

~ Mr. Pranah Barua - Director

. P Ganesh # - Director (w.e.f March 30, 2023), Chief Financial OFficer from
May 23, 2023

Mr. Pradeep Parameswaran - Independent Director

Mr. Pratik Bhujade - Company Secretary tll September 24 2021

M. Sanjay Dubey — Company Secretary w.e.f. September 25, 2021

Company in which key management personnel have significant influence

Gof land Developers Private Limited

Cerebrus Consultants Private Limited

*Where there are transactions during the current or previous year.

#There are no transactions during the current year.

[This space has been intentionally left blank]




Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited

(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)
Notes to Financial Statements

B. Transactions with Related party

Particulars Nature of transactions Transactions Balance as at Transactions Balance as at
during FY 2022-23  ° March 31, 2023 during FY 2021-22 March 31, 2022
Holding company
Discount Income (336.14) - (286.42) -
Banner Advertisement Income (226.85) - (186.76) -
Purchases 1589.94 (188.99) 1,577.53 (71.09)
Reimbursement of Expenses 371.25 - 409.44 -
Rent Income - - (0.41)
Brand Usage Fees 394.49 - 314.28 -
Interest Expenses 130.03 - 45.44 -
FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited ~ Lease Liability - - - (0.35)
Notional Interest Expense- Lease - - 0.03 -
Commission on Financial Guarantee - 19.15 36.65
Notional
Commission on Financial Guarantee 12.79 - - -
Loan taken (net) (216.77) (1,705.09) (1,921.87) (1,921.87)
ESOP cost 45.91 - 7143 -
Other Equity Contribuion (45.90) (442.04) (102.04) (395.44)
Fellow subsidiary
Sales (578.51) (334.44)
Marketing expense 307.16 176.36 -
Banner Advertisement Income (151.63) - (110.17) -
Commission Expense (Endless Aisle) 1.29 3.39 -
Hyperlocal commission income (8.17) (12.76) -
Rent Income (6.47) 15.81) -
FSN Brands Markefing Private Limited ~ Discount Income (269.96) - (179.25) -
Discount Expenses 46.71 - 2.1 -
Purchases 3,384.91 (2%.46) 3,325.75 (279.10)
Recovery of Reimbursement of Expenses (16.44) - (23.25) -
Net Investment- Sublease - 6.50 - 10.80
Sales of Fixed Asset (0.24) - - -
Notional Interest Income- Sublease (1.02) - (1.50) -
Purchases 357.41 (32.17) 230.73 3.00
Nykaa-KK Beauty Private Limited Discount Income (63.27) - (39.09) -
Recovery of Reimbursement of Expenses (4.75) - (1.28) -
Recovery of Reimbursement of Expenses (61.83) 142.83 (133.50) 89.55
Welness Marketplace Commission (239.69) - (94.45) -
Listing fees (39.33) - (52.80)
Nykaa Fashion Private Limited Sale of fixed asset (0.47) - (0.03) -
Rent Income (41.61) - (0.22) -
Net Investment- Sublease 217.97 (188.99) - 0.68
Notional Interest Income- Sublease (10.85) - (0.07) -
Lisfing fees (0.33) (0.28)
FSN International Private Limited Rent Income 0.27) - (0.19) -
Recovery of Reimbursement of Expenses (0.41) 0.03 (0.43) 0.03
Sales (3.98) 14 - -
Purchase 510
Banner Advertisement Income 8.14
Discount Expenses 2.02 - - -
FSN Distribution Private Limited Rent Income (17.00) - (1.18) 127
Notional Interest Income- Sublease (2.62) - - -
Sale of Intangible Asset (11.98) - -
Net Investment- Sublease 46.24 38.58
Recovery of Reimbursement of Expenses 0.00 - - -
Purchases 242.09 (53.02) 68.38 (14.45)
Dot and Key Welness Private Limited ~ Discount Income - - (10.87) -
_ Banner Advertisement Income (39.13) - (23.96) 6.10
i Purchases 0.24 - - -
Nudge Welless Private Limited Discount Incore 02) -
: Donation .51 -
Nykaa Foundaton Investment* 0.00 0.00 -
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Particulars Nature of transactions Transactions Balance as at Transactions Balance as at
during FY 2022-23 March 31, 2023 during FY 2021-22 March 31, 2022

Company in which key management personnel have significant influence

Rent & maintenance expenses 272 - 2620 -
Security deposit - 1062 - 910

Golf land Developers Private Limited Notional Interest income- Security Deposit 093 (1.08) -
Lease liahility - (8.44) - (31.84)
Nofional interest expense- Lease 201 - 249 -

Cerebrus Consuttants Private Limited HR Service Cost 0.08

Key Management Personnel

Ms. Falquni Nayar Remuneration 514 - RR

Mr. Anchit Nayar Remuneration 2153 - 1249

Mr. Sanjay Dubey Remuneration 598 - 5.16

Mr. Pratik Bhujade Remuneration - - 0.65

Mr Pranab Barua Siting fees 0.15 - 0.2
Commission 1.00 .

Mr. Pradeep Parameshwara Siting fees 0.15 - 0.03

Figures in brackets indicates payables and income

Note 42
Commitments and contingent liabilities

A. Commitments
- Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of
advances) — Rs NIL as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 — Rs 54.99 Mn)

B. Contingent liabilities

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

i) Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts

Disputed Income tax matters (including interest up to the date of demand, if any) 74.37 7437
Disputed Indirect tax matters (including interest up to the date of demand, if any) [Refer note (i) below] 0.89 0.89
Litigations pertaining to consumer cases 1.00 -
Total 76.26 75.26
Notes:

i The Company had received an income tax assessment order for the financial year 2017-18 in respect of a
demand of Rs. 74.37 million on account of certain disallowances made by the tax authorities. The Company
had filed an appeal before the CIT(A) contesting the said disallowances and has obtained a stay order w.r.t the
outstanding demand. The Management believes that the position taken by it on the above matter is tenable and
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ii. ~The Company had received VAT assessments order for financial years 2016-17 and with demands amounting
to Rs. 5.02 Mn on account of certain input disallowances/adjustment made by VAT department. The Company
had deposited Rs 4.13 Mn in financial year 2021-22, and for Rs 0.89 Mn the management believes that the

position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment has been made to the financial
statements.

iii. Bank guarantees are provided against vendor liabilities.
Note 43
Segment information

The Company has identified Board of Directors and Group CEO as it's Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) who reviews and allocates resources based on Omni business and Omni channel strategy, which
in terms of Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’ constitutes a single reporting segment.

i) The company operates in a single geographical environment i.e. in India.
ii) No single customer contributed 10% or more to Company’s revenue.
i) All non-current assets of the Company are located in India.

Note 44
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
A. Financial Instruments by category and fair value hierarchy

The fair values of assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument can be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: The carrying values of
financial assets i.e. cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, bank balances other than cash and
cash equivalents, other financial assets and of financial liabilities i.e. trade and other payables, working
capital loan borrowing and other financial liabilities are reasonable approximation of their fair values due
to the short maturities of these instruments. The Company does not have material financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL’) and fair value through other
comprehensive income. There are no material financial assets and liabilities that are required to be
disclosed in level 1 and level 2.

Carrying value as of

Particulars Level  March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

Financial Assets:
Amortised cost

Trade receivables 1,042.86 777.08

Cash and cash equivalents 166.52 2.39

Bank balance other than cash and 66.95 47.80

cash equivalents

Other financial assets 1,085.63 649.74
Total 2,361.96 1,477.01

Financial Liabilities:
Amortised cost

Borrowings 4,452.15 4,056.71

Lease liabilities 1,082.36 766.70

Trade payables 1,462.92 2,457.17

Other financial liabilities 1,257.35 651.68
FVTPL

Derivative Financial Liabilities " 2 0.61 -
Total : 8,255.39 7,932.26

M Included in other current / -current financial liabilities
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B. Valuation methodology:

The fair values of assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument can be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The valuation techniques used to determine the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as
level 2 include use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments and generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities.

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts with various counterparties.
The fair value of such derivatives instruments are determined using forward exchange rates, currency basis
spreads between respective currencies, etc.

Note 45
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies:

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings from banks, trade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal
financial assets comprise cash and bank balance, trade and other receivables that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to various financial risks such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s
senior management team oversees the management of these risks. The Board of Directors review and agree policies
for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk mainly comprises currency risk, product price risk and interest risk.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This
is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

a) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily due to borrowings having floating interest rates. The Company
uses available working capital limits for availing short-term working capital demand loans with interest rates
negotiated from time to time so that the Company has an effective mix of fixed and variable rate borrowings. The
following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans
and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s
profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increase /
decrease in basis Effect on profit
points before tax
March 31, 2023 +50 (22.26)
-50 22.26
March 31, 2022 +50 (20.28)
-50 20.28

b) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company’s operating activities denominated in foreign currency and thus the risk of changes in forelgn
exchange rates relates primarily to trade payables.




Nykaa E-Retail Private Limited
(All amounts are in Rs. million (Mn), except per share data and unless stated otherwise)
Notes to Financial Statements

The year end foreign currency forward contracts and unhedged foreign currency exposures are given below:

. a) Derivatives (forward contracts) outstanding as at the reporting.date (in respective currency):

Amount as at March 31, 2023:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars of transactions Currency  Foreign Currency  Equivalent ¥  Foreign Currency  Equivalent &
Forward confracts o Purchases Euro - Trade Payable Euro 0.01 098 - -
Forward contracts to Purchases USD - Trade Payable USD 11 140.67 094 [P

*Represents conversion at hedged rate.

b) Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date (in respective currency):

Particulars Currency As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Foreign Currency  Equivalent ¥ Foreign Currency  Equivalent ¥

Payables: ’

Trade payables UsD 0.45 31.29 0.08 6.44
Euro 0.00¢ 0.00* 0.00* 0.38

Advances:

Advance to vendors against purchases / expense UsD 0.3 19.16 0.23 17.51
Euro 0.00 0.02 - -

*Numbers are below million under the rounding off convention adopted by the Company and accordingly not reported.

Since the business of the Company doesn’t involves material foreign currency transactions, its exposure to foreign
currency changes is not material.

¢) Product price risk

In a potentially inflationary economy, the Company expects periodical price increases across its product lines.
Product price increases which are not in line with the levels of customers’ discretionary spends, may affect the

business/ sales volumes. In such a scenario, the risk is managed by offering judicious product discounts to customers
to sustain volumes. The Company negotiates with its vendors for purchase price rebates such that the rebates
substantially absorb the product discounts offered to the customers. This helps the Company to protect itself from
significant product margin losses. This mechanism also works in case of a downturn in the retail sector, although
overall volumes would get affected.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables).

a) Trade receivables

The Company’s retail business is predominantly on “Prepaid” and “cash on delivery”, the credit risk on such
collections is minimal. The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with only credit worthy counterparties in case
of institutional customers and the credit risk exposure for institutional customers is managed by the Company by
credit worthiness checks.

The Company’s experience of delinquencies and customer disputes have been minimal. Also the Company have a
simplified approach to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. This is based on
its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward

credit loss on trade receivable).
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Movement in allowances for expected credit loss:

Particulars T e As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 44.03 62.37
Provision (reversed) / made during the year 17.34 (18.34)
Provision written off during the year - -
Closing balance 61.37 44.03

b) Security deposit

The Company also carries credit risk on lease deposits with landlords for properties taken on leases, for which
agreements are signed and property possessions are taken for operations. The risk relating to refunds after vacating
the premises is managed through successful negotiations or appropriate legal actions, where necessary.

c¢) Other Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in
consultation with Chief Financial Officer and Board of Directors as per the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.
Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis and may be updated
throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s Finance Committee. The limits are set to minimise the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make
payments.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is a risk that the Company may not be able to meet its financial obligations on a timely basis through its
cash and cash equivalents, and funds available by way of committed credit facilities from banks. Management
manages the liquidity risk by monitoring rolling cash flow forecasts and maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities. This monitoring includes financial ratios and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash
equivalents and additional undrawn financing facilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

Particulars Carrying value  Lessthan1year  1to5years > § years Total

As at March 31, 2023

Borrowings 4,452.15 4,452.15 - - 4,452.15
Trade payables 1,462.92 1,462.92 - - 1,462.92
Lease liahilities 1,082.36 508.25 698.47 54.15 1,260.87
Other financial liabiliies 1,257.96 1,257.96 - - 1,257.96
Total 8,255.39 7,681.28 698.47 54.15 8,433.90
As at March 31, 2022

Borrowings 4,056.71 4,05.71 - - 4,056.71
Trade payables 245717 245717 - - 245717
Lease liabilities 766.70 277.68 609.95 43.91 931.54
Other financial liabilities 651.68 651.68 - - 651.68
Total , 7,932.26 7,443.24 609.95 4391 8,097.10
Note 46

Capital management:

The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and
to optimise returns to its shareholders. For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes
issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary
objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. The capital structure of the
Company is based on management's judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order,

——
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objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. The capital structure of the
Company is based on management's judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its

strategic and day-to-day needs. The Company consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and
strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and
to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to
maintain, or if necessary, adjust, its capital structure.

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Gross debt 4,452.15 4,056.71
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (166.52) (2.39)
Net debt (A) 4,285.63 4,054.32
Equity 4,097.77 2,140.57
Total Equity (B) 4,097.77 2,140.57
Net gearing ratio (A)/(B) 1.05 1.89

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Note 47
Employee Share Based Payment:

Under the Employees Stock Option Scheme — 2012 ("2012 Scheme") and 2017 (“2017 Scheme), the stock options
of the holding company were granted to certain employees of the Company. In most cases, the exercise price of the
share options is equal to the market price of the underlying shares on the date of grant. Vesting period of options are’
3 to 4 years and options are vested equally over the vesting period. Vested options are exercisable as per the terms
of the option plan, provided the employee is in employment of the Company on the date of the vesting of the stock
options and should not be serving his notice period. The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share
options were granted.

The Company has recognised an expense of Rs 45.91 Mn (March 31, 2022: Rs. 71.43 Mn) arising from equity settled
share based payment transactions for employee services received during the year.

As at the end of the financial year, details and movements of the outstanding options are as follows:

a. Options granted under ESOS 2012

March 31, 2023** March 31, 2022**

Options outstanding at the beginning of the period 9,33,000 20,89,080
Options granted during the period - 9,33,000
Options forfeited during the period (40,500) -
Options expired/lapsed during the period = =
Options exercised during the period (75,000) (20,89,080)
Options outstanding at the end of the period 8,17,500 9,33,000

For options outstanding at the end of the period:
Exercise price range Rs. 99 Rs. 99 - 187.50
Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) ‘ 5.08 5.98
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Options granted under ESOS 2017

March 31, 2023** March 31, 2022**

Options outstanding at the beginning of the period ‘ 1,35,53,400 1,63,05,180
Options granted during the period 3,41,700 62,95,200
Options forfeited during the period (27,85,800) (13,83,000)
Options expired/lapsed during the period - -
Options transferred during the year - (1,74,000)
Options exercised during the period (40,16,064) (74,89,980)
Options outstanding at the end of the period 70,93,236 1,35,53,400
For options outstanding at the end of the period:
Exercise price range Rs.3.61-226.33 Rs.99-1,794
Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) 4.65 492
b. Fair value of options granted
The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant based on the following assumptions:
ES0S 2012
Tranche | Tranchel Tranche Il Tranche IV
Dividend yield (%) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Expected life (years) 19 281 335 435
Risk free interest rate (%) 6.90%
Volatility (%) 45.00%
Market price on date of grant 137.60
Fair Value 43.85 5211 57.60 65.67
ES0S 2017
Tranche | Tranchell Tranche [l Tranche IV
Dividend yield (%) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Expected life (years) 19-211 281-2.50 335-347 435-447
Risk free interest rate (%) 6.2%t0 6.9%
Volatiity (%) 15% to 50%
Market price on date of grant 137.60-22748
Fair Value 4138-69.86 5271-8970  57.01t091.77  65.64-105.26

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily
indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The volatility is based on annualised standard deviation of the
continuously compounded rates of return based on the peer companies and competitive stocks over a period of time.
The Company has determined the market price on grant date based on latest equity valuation report available with
the company preceding the grant date.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the the year was Rs. 187
(March, 2022 Rs. 153)

**The movement of options & the fair value assumptions have been restated to give effect of the bonus shares allotted
by the company wide Board's approval dated October 03, 2022 in proportion of 5:1, i.e., 5 (five) bonus equity shares
of Re 1 each for every 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share held as on the record date.
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Note 48
Ratio Analysis and its elements
SN Ratio Numertor Denominator Harch 31,2008 ifarch 31, 020 % Change Reasonforvarafion
f Curentra Curent asses Curent s 124 10 1308
2 Debtequyrf Longterm et Shreholdes equly - -
3 Debtsenvioe coveragerao  Eamingsordebtsenice =Nt Deblsenice = erest & ease i 3% 10t
proftaferases +Noncash ~ Peyments + Prnipa Repayments
operaing expenses + Fnance Cost
4 Relum on equiy e Nt Proft afer taves Auerage Shareholder's Equiy bt M 10
5 Iventoryumover raflo Costofgoodssol Rierage Inventoy 42 1
6 Trade ecevaletumover o~ Nt eedisales = Cross credd  Average Trade Receivabl Uy 05 9Tk
52s - 52 reum
T Trade payable fmover iy Nt e urchases = Gross credt Average Trade Pyables i 1% 0%
DUTChaeS - urchasereum
b Netcaptaltumowerra — Ntseles=Tofasls-sdles Working captel = Curent assls - ik 1300 -5082% Decreaseinaccount of mrease n workig caal
) Curen abites duringthe et
0 Netpoft e Nt Prot Nt sales = Totl s - Sas T b
el
{0 Retumon capteemployed  Eamings before et and fakes - CaptalEmployed = Tangle Net B W 1
YWorh + ToalDet
{1 Retum onivestment Inerstoome on fed depost~ Average vestmentin e (U T
epest

*There are no long-term debt.
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Note 49

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 17.16 9.37
b Amount spent during the year on the following in cash
i. Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -
ii. On purpose other than (i) above* 3.93 5.90
The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount
) . 13.23 347
required to be spent by the Company during the year
The total of previous years’ shortfall amounts; - -
Related party transactions in relation to corporate social responsibility - -
Provision movement during the year 13.23 3.47
Reason of abowve shortfall

SN Particulars

(¢}

Q@ =t |

The Company is executing certain multiyear ongoing projects
namely, “Project LabourNet’ and “Nykaa Chair in Consumer
Technology implemented by IIM-A”. Due to such ongoing
projects and plan of spending funds in mulii years, the
Company was not able to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5) in the current financial year.
Unspent CSR amount pertaining to the commitments made by
the Company towards multi-year ongoing projects has been
fransferred to a separate Unspent CSR account of the
Company. The amount transferred to the aforesaid Unspent
CSR account will be spent for the said projects within the
permissible time limit. Accordingly, the Company has duly
complied with section 135 of the Act read with rules thereunder
and the CSR policy of the Company.
h Nature of CSR activiies The amount during the year has been spent towards promoting
research & education, upskiling, employment enhancing
. vocation skills especially among women. .
*Contributiuon of INR 3.93 Mn has been given to Nykaa foundation which is a section 8 company engaged in doing CSR activities. The
amount has been contributed to Sambhav Foundation through Nykaa Foundation for CSR activity.

Note 50
Other Statutory Information

I. The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

Il. The Company does not have any charge or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period.

lIl. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial year.

IV. The Company did not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

V. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by

or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

VI. No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. o
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Note 51
Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassed wherever required.
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